
 

1 

DRAFT 
TOWN COUNCIL 
Special Meeting 

Cape Charles Civic Center, 500 Tazewell Avenue 
September 4, 2025 

6:00 PM 
 
 
At approximately 6:00 p.m. Mayor Adam Charney, having established a quorum, called to order the 
Special Meeting of the Cape Charles Town Council.  In addition to Mayor Charney, in attendance were 
Vice Mayor Buchholz, Councilmen Butta, Grossman and Newman, and Councilwomen Ashworth and 
Holloway.  Staff in attendance were Town Manager Rick Keuroglian, Project Manager Bob Panek, 
Treasurer Marion Sofield, Assistant to the Town Manager Pam Endlein, and Town Clerk Libby Hume.  
There were 14 members of the public in attendance. 
 

A moment of silence was observed followed by the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS ONLY, EXCLUDING TOWN HALL TOPIC: (3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER) 
There were no comments to be heard, nor any comments received in writing prior to the meeting. 
 

SPECIAL MEETING ORDER OF BUSINESS: 
A. Contract Award for Harbor Boardwalk Reconstruction, Phase 2: 

Project Manager Bob Panek stated that the evaluation of harbor capital assets by our marine 
engineering firm, Langley & McDonald, indicated that the boardwalk which was built on top of 
the4 bulkhead at the outer harbor needed continuing repair to extend its service life.  A 
subsequent inspection revealed that much of the decking, supporting stringers and battens were 
rotted and a three-phase plan was developed to reconstruct the boardwalk with pressure treated 
lumber rated for ground contact and synthetic decking.  The first phase of 139 linear feet near 
the bath house was completed this spring.  The second phase of 380 linear feet was included in 
the Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 budget and would go to the west end of the bulkhead.  The last phase 
on the west side of the bulkhead was planned for FY 2027.  An invitation for bids (IFB) was issued 
on July 18, 2025 and four bids were received ranging from $120K to $184K.  The low bid was 
Carolina Marine Structures which had the appropriate state contractor’s license.  They 
successfully completed many projects in the Hampton Roads area and were recommended by 
Langley & McDonald.  The FY 2026 budget included $129K for this project. 
 

There were questions as follows: i) Vice Mayor Buchholz asked when the boardwalk was built.  
Bob Panek stated that it was at least 15 years old, adding that he doubted that the proper grade 
of pressure treated lumber was used for the original construction and there were areas where 
the boardwalk had collapsed.  The IFB specified the use of ground contact pressure treated 
lumber; ii) Councilwoman Ashworth asked when the construction would begin and the projected 
duration.  Bob Panek stated that work would begin one month after contract award, after the 
materials arrived and would take about one to two months.  The first phase of 139 linear feet 
took less than a month to complete. 
 

Motion made by Councilman Grossman, seconded by Councilman Butta, to authorize the Town 
Manager to award the contract to Carolina Marine Structures in the amount of $120K with a 
contingency reserve of $9K should additional damage be discovered during reconstruction.  
The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 



 

2 

 

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS: 
Town Manager Rick Keuroglian commented as follows:  
i) He thanked everyone who was in attendance this evening, adding that it was always great to see 

the public participating, even if it was just to listen. 
 

ii) He asked Council if there were any questions related to his weekly report.  There were no 
questions.  He added that in a future report, he wanted to include information regarding public 
works projects, so the public was aware of the status of each project.  Councilman Butta asked 
that an update be provided regarding demolition by neglect, adding that Council had asked for 
this update for August but did not receive it.  Town Clerk Libby Hume responded that Katie Nunez 
was working on the presentation for the September 18th Council meeting. 

 

iii) He read an email that he received from David Gomer, adding that he needed to hear the things 
noted by Mr. Gomer and he wanted Town Council to hear it as well.  He viewed this as an 
opportunity to work out solutions and an opportunity to show accountability on the Town’s part 
to get things resolved.  He responded to Mr. Gomer thanking him for taking the time to write his 
letter and informed him that he took a walk along the beach and took inventory of the fishing pier 
and landing by Tazewell Avenue.  He noticed a lot of broken boards and was really disappointed 
and horrified of the condition.  He took pictures and video and met with the public works crew 
leader and gave him an action list.  We could replace the boards immediately.  He created a list 
with action points and sent it to the public works director, Ralph Bowen, and we would meet to 
discuss it when Ralph returns to the office. 
 

Councilwoman Holloway stated that several years ago, she and Vice Mayor Buchholz suggested 
evaluating the public works staff to see if we had adequate staffing and whether we had the right 
people in the right positions.  She had met with Mr. Gomer and was glad that he submitted his 
letter.  The public works crew worked so hard and had so much to do but we needed to provide 
direction with expectations. 
 

Rick Keuroglian continued by stating that the summer had been really busy and things were 
starting to slow down some so it was the perfect time to switch gears and tackle these other areas. 

 

There was much discussion as follows: i) Councilman Butta thanked Claudette Lajoie and the 
members of the Civic League for the work done on the Civic Center building pulling out vines, etc.  
The Town needed to maintain our facilities.  If we needed more people, we needed to hire more; 
ii) Councilman Newman stated that he had previously asked whether the public works 
department was fully staffed.  It was evident that the department was not fully staffed.  He was 
not throwing anyone under the bus because he knew Public Works worked really hard.  He 
previously sent a list of simple maintenance issues to John Hozey.  There were too many 
embarrassing things that had been allowed to happen.  He thanked Claudette Lajoie and the Civic 
League for their efforts to assist the Town.  The issues were not all on Town property.  He cited 
the Post Office and other buildings throughout the town.  We needed to put dollars where they 
were needed and mobilize support where we could.  We just approved $120K to repair the harbor 
boardwalk, but where were the dollars for these other things?  He expressed his gratitude to Mr. 
Gomer for submitting his letter; iii) Vice Mayor Buchholz added that he had spoken to Mr. Gomer 
and recommended that he write a letter to the town manager; iv) Rick Keuroglian added that the 
beach pavilion was also in bad condition; v) Councilwoman Ashworth stated that it seemed that 
most of the items discussed would be part of the beachfront master plan which was a long-term 
project, but we would not let things deteriorate any further.  She suggested allotting funding and 
getting the manpower to repair things versus watching them fall apart; vi) Councilwoman 



 

3 

Holloway added that the Town was always working on big projects, but we also needed to 
maintain what we had; vii) Rick Keuroglian stated that we would solve these issues together; viii) 
Councilman Butta stated that more trash cans were needed along Mason Avenue, especially by 
Brown Dog Ice Cream.  Councilwoman Holloway commented that the issue was not the number 
of trash cans, but that they needed to be emptied more frequently. 

 

MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
There were no additional comments. 
 

Motion made by Councilwoman Holloway, seconded by Councilman Grossman, to adjourn the 
Town Council Special Meeting.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:23 p.m. 
 
 

   
       Mayor Charney 
 
 

  
Town Clerk  



 

4 

September 4, 2025 Town Council Special Meeting 
Information Provided in Writing 

 

Letter from David Gomer 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

5 

 

 

 

 
****************** 

 

 



 

6 



 

7 

 
 



 

8 

 

 

 
 



 

9 

 

 
 


